
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

Tuesday, 24 March 2015 at 6.00 pm

Civic Suite, Solihull

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny 
Panel 

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do?

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council.

(b) When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must:

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it

 Not participate in any discussion or vote

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter.

Disclosable Interest Description

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses.

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income.

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the Council; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where—

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class.

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society.



SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN 
BOROUGH COUNCIL

To: Councillors M Robinson, K Grinsell, 
K Hawkins, M Hewings, T Hodgson and 
M Parker.

NICK PAGE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Council House, Manor Square
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB
Tel. 0121-704 6000 

Democratic Services
Tel: 0121 704 6050
Email: lstevens@solihull.gov.uk

Date: 17 March 2015

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL
Tuesday, 24 March 2015

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

To receive notification of apologies and substitutions from Members.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive notification of any declarations of pecuniary and/or conflict of interest 
from Members.

3. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS 

To answer questions and hear deputations, if any, asked by any resident of the 
Borough pursuant to Standing Orders.

4. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 12)

To receive for information only and where applicable, the minutes of the 
previous meeting.

5. COMMUNITY INTEGRATION - DEALING WITH SPECIFIC CRIME TYPES 
(Pages 13 - 18)

The Panel will review the strategies that the Partnership has in place to tackle 
specific crime types that adversely affect community integration, such as the 
local challenges posed by hate crime and discrimination towards certain sectors 
of the community.



6. PRESENTATION - FORCE CONTACT OVERVIEW (Pages 19 - 26)

The Panel will review the local use and effectiveness of the Police 101 number 
that is used to report some crime types and other issues that do not require an 
immediate emergency 999 responses. The Panel will review local performance 
and identify if any improvements should be considered to this aspect of Police 
customer service.

7. SAFER SOLIHULL PERFORMANCE SCORECARD 2014/15 - VERBAL 
UPDATE -YEAR END PROGRESS 

To consider the Safer Solihull Performance Scorecard 2014/15 – direction of 
travel towards “year end”.

8. WORK PLAN (Pages 27 - 30)

 
EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

10. DRAFT SOLIHULL LOCAL POLICE & CRIME PLAN 2015/16 (Pages 31 - 40)

Ahead of its publication, the Panel will consider and the draft Solihull Local 
Police & Crime Plan 2015/16.



CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL – 10 FEBRUARY 2015

CDSP 10 02 2015 Minutes (whole).doc

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL

10 FEBRUARY 2015

MINUTES 
Present: Councillor K Hawkins (Chairman). Councillors K Grinsell, M Hewings, 

K Macnaughton (sub), M Parker and M Robinson. 
Apologies:
Councillor T Hodgson.
Gillian Crabbe (Community Safety Manager – Solihull MBC).
Inspector Nigel Sarling (Performance Lead - West Midlands Police).
Officers in attendance: 
Lee Stevenson (Solihull MBC, Governance Directorate).
Kulwant Virdee (Solihull MBC, Governance Directorate).
External report authors/witnesses in attendance:
Inspector Stephen Malone (Partnership Lead - West Midlands Police).
Observers in Attendance:
Councillor Mrs D Holl-Allen (Cabinet Member, Community and Partnerships).

1. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest from Members of the Panel.

2. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS
There were no questions or deputations in accordance with Standing Orders.
It was noted that due to giving apologies for the meeting, Councillor T Hodgson had made a 
written submission which detailed several areas for comment and questioning. This 
submission was overseen by his substitute, Councillor K Macnaughton during the course of 
the meeting.

3. MINUTES
The Minutes of the meeting held on 17th December 2014, was submitted for approval.

 RESOLVED
That the Minutes be agreed as a correct record. There were no matters arising.

4. REDUCING THE FEAR AND PERCEPTION OF CRIME
In attendance: Inspector Stephen Malone (Partnership Lead - West Midlands Police).
The Panel considered an overview of the Partnerships initiatives in place which worked 
towards reducing the fear and perception of crime within the Borough’s communities. 
The Panel considered examples where there had been Partnership activity in specific areas 
to tackle and target individual local issues in an attempt to demonstrate that the Partnership 
had understood and were addressing local problems.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL – 10 FEBRUARY 2015

CDSP 10 02 2015 Minutes (whole).doc

The Panel welcomed Inspector Stephen Malone to the meeting who outlined that despite the 
numbers of reported crime steadily reducing over the years, communities still told us that the 
fear of becoming a victim of crime was still prevalent. As well as providing information on 
perceptions and recorded crime, the report set out a number of case studies that 
demonstrated how the Partnership responded to community safety issues and to build 
confidence in Solihull’s communities. The remaining report and supporting information was 
taken as read.
In summary, the Panel made the following observations as part of their deliberations:

 Current affairs and media reporting (local and national issues) were said to 
contribute, in part, to a heightened fear of becoming a future victim of crime, despite 
there being an actual reduction in recorded crime in 2014, as compared with 2013. 

 In some areas, public perception was that Police patrols/Partnership activities were 
less visible although this was not actually the case.

 The Partnership was working towards improvements in their communications to 
ensure that “good news stories” were regularly and actively publicised to lift public 
confidence and help reduce the fear of becoming a victim of crime amongst 
communities. West Midlands Police now had a resident journalist, whose purpose 
was to help strengthen links between the media and the partner agencies.

 Social media was a very powerful and modern tool to communicate with and 
publicise Partnership activities. However, it was recognised that Solihull had some 
very high proportions of elderly residents and more traditional methods of 
communication to those audiences sill applied with equal importance. 

 “Key Individual Networks” and re-formed Independent Advisory Groups made up of 
community representatives were able to offer feedback to agencies and act as a 
community voice. The Panel noted that these initiatives performed better in some 
areas of the Borough than others. Such barriers to success were weaker KIN’s in 
parts of the Borough with higher levels of reported crime. The key role of Elected 
Members in community communication was also acknowledged.

 Members welcomed the inclusion of inconsiderate parking and speeding traffic as a 
Partnership priority and were encouraged by the activities planned in 2015/16 by the 
Partnership to tackle these aspects of ASB.

 Funding reductions within West Midlands Police had a massive impact on service 
delivery over the last 4 years. This had meant that there was now more emphasis 
than ever on successful partnership working and community integration initiatives. 
Whilst there were several examples of successful initiatives, the Panel welcomed the 
mind-set that the Partner agencies were always looking at new opportunities.

 Surprisingly, other visible “uniformed” presences in local communities gave heighted 
reassurances and, in some cases, deterred criminality. Two proven examples were 
traffic warden patrols (CEO’s) and the Fire Service making return journeys through 
local communities with higher levels of reported crime.

 Bail hostel’s gave rise for discussion and it was considered important that potential 
reoffenders were made known and monitored by the correct agencies when their 
placements began in such properties. Whilst West Midlands Police set out the normal 
expected protocols (the PINS process), a Member gave a recent example where this 
process may not have happened. 

 West Midlands Police emphasised the importance of data sharing between Partner 
agencies and gave reassurances to the Panel that Solihull LPU would work 
proactively to ensure that there were no barriers within their control to hinder this.

Page 6



CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL – 10 FEBRUARY 2015

CDSP 10 02 2015 Minutes (whole).doc

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Panel:
(i) Supported further work being done by the Partnership to 

improve communications to promote their work – 
particularly recognising the importance of communicating 
“good news” and Partnership initiatives that are benefiting 
local communities. It was acknowledged that Elected 
Members had a role to play in this too;

(ii) Welcomed the continued use of social media etc but 
recognised the challenges of communicating with parts of 
Solihull will high proportions of elderly (and/or vulnerable) 
residents where more traditional methods of 
communication and publicity may be a more effective 
option;

(iii) Supported the work being done to strengthen other 
relationships such as with the local media (WMP resident 
journalist) and the “Key Individual Networks” in parts of 
Solihull where this initiative needed to be strengthened; 

(iv) Highlighted the importance to local communities of 
initiatives to tackle inconsiderate parking and speeding and 
looked forward to those priorities being further taken 
forward by the Partnership during 2015/16; and

(v) Acknowledge community integration initiatives (and reach-
out projects) as highly valued and beneficial and the Panel 
welcomed their ongoing continuation.

5. EARLY CRIME INTERVENTIONS AND REDUCING THE RISK OF REOFFENDING
In attendance: Inspector Stephen Malone (Partnership Lead - West Midlands Police).
The Panel reviewed the current role of the Partnership in the early intervention and 
prevention of crime and sought evidence of “problem solving” approaches from the 
Partnership. 
The Panel also reviewed the initiatives in place that sought to prevent vulnerable groups 
from going onto commit crime and ASB. The Panel considered the Partnerships strategies to 
prevent reoffending, particularly with young offenders and evaluated what typical percentage 
and what crime types within Solihull were attributable to reoffending.
The Panel welcomed Inspector Stephen Malone to the meeting who outlined that crime had 
a massive detrimental effect on communities and had potential to place disproportionate 
financial and administrative demand on local services. The Partnership aimed to work 
proactively to tackle reoffending and reduce the risk of reoffending whilst collaborating to 
reduce the fear and perception of risk posed by criminality reported by Solihull’s 
communities. The remaining report and supporting information was taken as read.
In summary, the Panel made the following observations as part of their deliberations:

 There was a perceived imbalance in the contributions from health bodies. The Police 
had a very well established, (circa 16 year) relationship with mental health teams 
which proved very successful. In comparison, relationships with health bodies (such 
as NHS) to directly support and promote “physical health” were, by comparison, still 
in relative infancy. The Panel encouraged further work to strengthen that latter 
pathway.

Page 7



CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL – 10 FEBRUARY 2015

CDSP 10 02 2015 Minutes (whole).doc

 The importance of being able to offer local people, local support was recognised – 
particularly having sufficient local resources available to support local people with 
mental health issues and seen as being at risk of committing crime or reoffending.

 The SARA (Scanning, Analysis, Response, Assessment) process was widely 
supported and several examples were noted where this practice was working well. 
The SARA model had identified Bilking, particularly, as an area of ongoing concern.

 The importance and benefits of Business Partnerships was discussed and 
aspirations to develop those further were welcomed.

 Much work was ongoing to understand “people behaviours”. West Midlands Police 
had some very effective powers to deal with criminality although responses needed 
to be proportionate. It was noted that the proportionality of responses by Solihull LPU 
came out very well to closer scrutiny.
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Panel:
(i) Welcomed all the reported initiatives and practices, 

particularly the SARA and IOM processes;
(ii) Noting that the Partnership had a well-established 

relationship with mental health services to support 
offenders etc, the Panel urged the Partnership to further 
develop its relationship during 2015/16 with the 
services/teams that promote and support “physical health” 
to address the perceived imbalance in those two areas of 
support; and

(iii) Raised concerns at the amount of Bilking that takes place 
within Solihull and the amount of Partnership/Police 
resources that crime type takes up. The Panel support 
further work being done by the Partnership/WMP to 
consider future options to address this. It was noted that 
Bilking was a national problem and that retailers had little 
incentive to address the problem themselves. The 
feasibility of reporting Bilking as a separate crime type was 
also requested to enable a more transparent assessment 
of Business Crime data to be considered.

6. SAFER SOLIHULL PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT & 
COMMUNITY SAFETY PLAN
In attendance: Inspector Stephen Malone (Partnership Lead - West Midlands Police).
Ahead of the March 2015 meeting of the Cabinet Decision Session, Community and 
Partnerships, the Panel was invited to consider the latest Safer Solihull Annual Strategic 
Assessment & Community Safety Plan. The same had been considered by the Safer Solihull 
Executive Board on 29 January 2015. 
The report was presented each year, together with the revised ASA, to enable a review of 
progress over the last twelve months to be made and to seek views on the priorities for the 
coming year. The report, supporting information and presentation material was taken as 
read.
In summary, the Panel made the following observations as part of their deliberations:

 Welcomed the methodology to the review.

Page 8



CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL – 10 FEBRUARY 2015

CDSP 10 02 2015 Minutes (whole).doc

 Supported the inclusion of speeding traffic and inconsiderate parking as a Top 4 
priority.

 Called for the focus on domestic violence to be given a stronger emphasis in the final 
publication, noting and endorsing the current and ongoing work to protect the 
Borough’s most vulnerable.

 Called for a more obvious reference to “listening to our communities” in the final 
publication.

 Welcomed the specific recognition to tackle several remaining key risks for ASB in 
Solihull, e.g. anti-social use of off-road bikes.

 Welcomed the high level of confidence that the priorities were achievable with the 
Partnership resources available.
RECOMMENDATIONS
The Panel:
(i) Supported the format and contents of the Annual Strategic 

Assessment. The Panel also welcomed the current 
methodology to the ASA review;

(ii) Supported the 4 strategic priorities as outlined at point 6.1 
of the report. The Panel particularly welcomed the element 
of Priority 3 (Supporting Stronger Communities) which 
would seek to tackle inconsiderate parking and speeding 
and looked forward to those priorities being further taken 
forward by the Partnership during 2015/16. However, the 
Panel wished to see a stronger reference to the focus on 
Domestic Violence as included in Priority 1 (Better 
Protecting People from Harm). It was requested that a 
different form of words could be used in that preamble to 
address that point. Additionally, references to the 
importance of “listening to our communities” should also be 
more apparent and promoted in the early pages of the ASA 
to recognise the value of this aspect of Partnership 
engagement;

(iii) Subject to the above, supported the priority themes at point 
7.1 to 7.5 of the report;

(iv) Supported the areas of multi-agency partnership focus at 
point 7.6 of the report; and

(v) Supported the model of delivery as outlined at point 8.1 of 
the report to deliver against the Partnership priorities, 
themes and areas of focus.

7. SAFER SOLIHULL PARTNERSHIP – INCORPORATING THE SOLIHULL LOCAL 
POLICE AND CRIME BOARD – SUMMARY FOR QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE 
(OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2014)
In attendance: Inspector Stephen Malone (Partnership Lead - West Midlands Police).
The Panel considered a report that set out a summary of the Safer Solihull Performance 
Scorecard for Qtr 3 (October to December 2014). The performance data, as presented, was 
taken as read.
In summary, the Panel made the following observations as part of their deliberations:

Page 9



CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL – 10 FEBRUARY 2015

CDSP 10 02 2015 Minutes (whole).doc

 Highlighted again their concerns regarding the reporting of business crime, 
particularly Bilking and the perceived increase in reported business crime that was 
attributable to that crime type. The Panel felt that this type of criminality should be 
reported separately to allow for the reporting of business crime to be more 
transparent.

 Clarified the means of reporting and recording fraud, noting that factors such as 
where and how the crime was committed depended on how it was then categorised 
e.g. business fraud = business crime category.

 Welcomed the initiatives and policing practices in place to deal with public place 
violence, noting a recent operational example.

 Noted the decrease in the overall satisfaction with the outcome of ASB cases and 
asked for further information to explain that.
RESOLVED
The Panel made the following observations to the Cabinet Member 
for Community and Partnerships (March 2015 Decision Session):
(i) Indicator NI 16d Business Crime – YTD +11.1%. A further 

narrative should be provided to explain why this NI had 
been scored as RED and to demonstrate what was being 
done to tackle this increase. The Panel assumed the 
increase was attributable to Bilking but this was not 
immediately obvious from the report – this should be 
clarified in readiness for the Community & Partnerships 
Cabinet Decision Session. The Panel also reiterated 
comments towards Bilking as set out above;

(ii) Indicator NI 16e Public Place Violence with Injury – YTD 
+3.8%. The Panel noted the initiatives and policing 
practices in place to deal with this NI and requested that a 
further update should be prepared in readiness for the 
Community & Partnerships Cabinet Decision Session, 
given the reported YTD increase;

(iii) Indicator NS CS 01b Overall Satisfaction with outcome of 
ASB Cases. The Panel noted the RED Status and 
requested that further information should be sought and 
circulated (in readiness for the Community & Partnerships 
Cabinet Decision Session) to give a detailed explanation as 
to the reasons why the Qtr3 2014/15 trend sat at 85% in 
comparison with Qtr.’s 1 & 2 which sat at 100%.

8. BRIEFNG ITEM – CONSULTATION: SUBSTANCE MISUSE COMMISSIONING 
PLAN 2015/16
The Panel received a copy of the Consultation: Substance Misuse Commissioning Plan 
2015/16 which was duly noted. Members were encouraged to respond as per the guidance 
given in the covering report.

RESOLVED
That the Consultation be received and the intended mechanism for 
the Panel Members to respond be acknowledged.

Page 10



CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY PANEL – 10 FEBRUARY 2015

CDSP 10 02 2015 Minutes (whole).doc

9. WORK PLAN
The Panel received and considered its Work Plan for the remainder of 2014/15. The Panel’s 
next meeting, to be held on 24 March 2015, detailed the following items:

 Community Integration – dealing with specific crime types (Hate Crimes).
 Police 101 Non-Emergency Number and Review of Police Contact.

RESOLVED
That the Panel’s Work Plan be agreed.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel
24th March 2015 (Panel Session 4) - Civic Suite 6pm

Community Integration – Dealing with Specific Crime Types

The Panel will review the strategies that the Partnership has in place to tackle specific 
crime types that adversely affect community integration, such as the local challenges posed 
by hate crime and discrimination towards certain sectors of the community.

Partnership overview

1.1 In 2008, Partners in Solihull agreed a Community Strategy for Solihull that sets out 
their ambitions to make Solihull a great place to live, promoting a vision of Solihull in 2018 
where: everyone has an equal chance to be healthier, happier, safer, and more prosperous. 

2.1 This vision recognises that while Solihull is a broadly affluent borough, there are 
areas of the borough where levels of prosperity are lower which impacts significantly on the 
quality of life for people in these neighbourhoods. 

3.1 In 2011, when the Communities Strategy was last refreshed, Partners identified a 
more focused set of eleven priority outcome areas which were seen as cross-cutting and 
required partners to work together on addressing them. At that time, the impact of the 
economic downturn was biting with the less prosperous neighbourhoods in Solihull 
suffering the hardest. A narrowing the gap scorecard aligned to the priority outcome areas 
was developed; this sets out clearly the levels of inequality and the gaps we aim to narrow. 
Community integration and addressing the needs of our diverse communities is 
fundamental to the success of the Communities strategy and the Safer Solihull local police 
and crime plan aim to keep our communities safe.

4.1 The latest refresh of Solihull’s Community Strategy for 2014/18 brings together the 
Partnership’s focus on priority outcomes with work undertaken across the region by West 
Midlands Police which identified areas most affected by crime and anti-social behaviour. 
We know that these areas require a targeted ‘partnership plus’ approach to tackle the 
underlying socio-economic causes of crime and any diversity issues. Partners and key 
stakeholders, more recently, have come together to challenge their existing strategies and 
identify if they are targeting services in the right area and for the right people to close the 
inequalities gap. 

Hate Crime and Incidents

5.1 A hate crime is any criminal offence which is perceived by the victim or any other 
person to be motivated by a hostility or prejudice based on a person’s actual or perceived 
race, religion, sexual orientation, disability or transgender identity.

6.1 A hate incident is any non-crime which is perceived by the victim or any other 
person to be motivated by a hostility or prejudice based on a person’s actual or perceived 
race, religion, sexual orientation, disability or transgender identity.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Background

7.1 The MacPherson Report (The Stephen Lawrence enquiry) made 77 
recommendations to the police, one of which was the introduction of third party reporting 
centres where communities could report intelligence and hostility related crime without the 
need to attend a police station. It was the start of a long journey towards recognising hate 
crime and incidents.

8.1 These recommendations were expanded following the serious case review for Fiona 
Pilkington which highlighted the need for the recording of non-crime incidents. Relatively 
recent government policy has supported this approach meaning hate incidents are now 
recorded and investigated where appropriate.

9.1 For the police tackling hate crime has traditionally focused on race, however within 
the last ten years Disability, Faith, Homophobic and Transphobic hate crimes are being 
identified by communities, recorded and investigated by the police.

10.1 We know from what our communities tell us that confidence to report is low and 
Hate crime is still under-reported. Tackling this alongside the monitoring and management 
of present or arising community tension is the focus of local police in partnership with local 
authorities.

11.1 West Midlands Police coordinates its work through a force control plan which is 
reviewed monthly and updated annually. The 2014/15 plan is currently under review. Local 
policing units like Solihull report to force headquarter about on-going activity, recorded 
incidents and crime levels and share best practice to ensure a force wide understanding.

12.1 The force works towards the following key aims:

 To encourage increased reporting
 Improve the level of service to Hate Crime victims
 Remove the barriers to reporting Hate Crime.
 Increase number of offenders brought to justice
 To achieve improved Trust, Confidence and Satisfaction
 Develop Community Cohesion
 Delivery of a professional and impartial service

See Appendices 1 for the Force Control Plan 2014/15

Performance

13.1 The below control chart at fig 1.1 shows the level of recorded hate crime since April 
2012, tracking the level of reporting across Solihull borough. Its should be noted that the 
increase in recorded hate crime in May 2013 follows the murder of Fusilier Lee Rigby in 
London.

Page 14



Fig 1.1

14.1 The last year has seen 178 crimes thus far from February 2014 to February 2015 
with the addition of 30 hate crime incidents which may not met the crime threshold.

15.1 More recently data for quarter three of 2014/15 (Oct to Dec 2014) shows 53 
offences within the borough recorded as hate crime broken down across the three Council 
Neighbourhood Management areas as follows.

 16 North 
 33 South 
 4 Rural 

16.1 As with all statistics it is important to understand the detail behind any rises in crime 
or incidents reported. This approach is explained later within this report. Local, national and 
international events can all affect offending levels, community perception and cohesion 
issues. This understanding of the cause and result is monitored by police through both daily 
and monthly tasking meetings which allow senior officers to direct resources, 
communication and reassurance accordingly,

 Incident or Crime Reporting and Management
 Hate Crime Reporting Centres

17.1 In addition to the standard methods of reporting to the police 24 third party hate 
crime reporting centres exist within key service locations across the Borough at 22 separate 
locations. They include children’s centres, the You+ and enable. These additional reporting 
arrangements were put in place in 2013 and are detailed on the Solihull Council website at 
www.solihull.gov.uk/hatecrime

18.1 These centres offer the opportunity for members of the public to report crime or 
incidents independently of contact with the police. This aims to remove barriers that could 
exist including mistrust or fear of the police, concern about repeat victimisation, fear of 
reprisal, fear of not being believed or judged or social embarrassment. 

19.1 When a third party reporting centre is made aware of an incident, they will take as 
much information down as possible from the victim or other person making the report.  
There are special forms available to assist people with learning difficulties to report more 

Page 15

file:///C:/Users/gcrabbe/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QP1OMZIV/www.solihull.gov.uk/hatecrime


easily, and a talking pages CD available for blind and partially sighted people.  The person 
taking the report will then go to www.report-it.org.uk which is the True Vision website.  
They will submit the information online via this website. Trues Vision is a nationally used 
website which exists to give the public information about hate crime or incidents. The 
website informs the public what hate crimes or hate incidents are and how they can report 
them and offers contact for groups who can offer help and support victims.

20.1 The information goes through to the police who deal with the report as they would 
with any other hate crime incident.  Sometimes the person making the report will be the 
police contact and not the victim. Where police need to speak to a victim, the third party 
reporting centre can help to facilitate this, especially in cases where there may be the need 
for a chaperone to help explain the process. Police make all reasonable adjustments to 
accommodate the individual needs of the victim for example such as meeting at a location 
of their choice to avoid the presence of Police at someone’s home address.

21.1 In 2014 there were 11 incidents reported through Solihull hate crime reporting 
centres, these included racist and homophobic crimes which were investigated by police 
following report.

 Management of Incidents or Crimes

22.1 All hate crime incidents or crimes are managed as a priority by the police. When a 
hate report is received it will be scrutinised by senior police management at Chief Inspector 
rank or above through that mornings daily management meeting. Any actions to address 
community cohesion or victim reassurance are acted upon quickly and responsibility is 
usually given to local neighbourhood teams. This can include tactics such as reassurance 
visits to specific locations such as places of worship, contact and communication with key 
individuals within the community including victims, a social media and communication 
campaign or visible patrols within areas where tensions are identified. 

23.1 On-going investigations are managed through either the local investigation or force 
crime teams where all victims are treated as priority victims under the Victim Code 
(legalisation that prescribed how police treat their victims). The local Detective Inspector 
has an overview of all hate crime incidents and is responsible for ensuring they are dealt 
with expeditiously and are prioritised, ensuring all avenues of investigation are followed. 

24.1 This scrutiny of incidents and crimes ensures an excellent service is offered to all 
victims of hate. This aims to build confidence and victim satisfaction with the aim of 
increasing the number of successful prosecutions and building confidence within those 
communities likely to be targeted. 

Case Studies

Case Study 1 – Offender identified

25.1 The owner of a newsagents shop contacts the police to report that after refusing to 
serve young person cigarettes, she has been subjected to racial abuse.

26.1 The victim informs the police that she knows the young person involved, he is a 
regular customer, is usually polite but he lost his temper, the offence is captured on her 
shop CCTV.

Page 16

http://www.report-it.org.uk/


27.1 Officers attend the shop and can clearly see the incident; they record the offence as 
a racially aggravated public order offence, take a full statement from the shop owner and 
recover the CCTV footage. The young person was identified as a result of this CCTV and 
was arrested by officers at his home address.

28.1 During interview the young person fully admitted using racist language. It was noted 
that on the day in question the young person was already upset due to an on-going 
domestic situation and had lost his temper. The young person asks for the chance to 
apologise, states he is disappointed in himself and expresses remorse.

29.1 The officer contacted the victim to update her of the result of the interview. During 
this discussion the victim expresses that she wanted the young person to be educated in 
her religion and background and did not want the young person criminalised.

30.1 The officer considered the criminal justice outcomes available to her and put a 
report before a police Inspector for consideration to request a community resolution. Due to 
the seriousness of the offence this isn’t usually agreed however due to the offenders 
remorse and the victims wishes in this case it was agreed.

31.1 The officer arranged for the young person to visit Birmingham Central Mosque and 
volunteer for two days. During this time he was educated in the Muslim culture and religion. 
The officer then arranged for the young person to visit the shop and apologise to the shop 
owner for his actions. The young person discussed the work he had undertaken and what 
had been learnt. The young person remains a customer at the shop, understands the 
outcomes of his actions and has a positive relationship with the victim.

Case Study 2 – Offender unidentified

32.1 Police receive a report of anti-Semitic graffiti in the toilets of Solihull library which 
was believed to have been made on National Holocaust Memorial Day. Solihull library is 
one of our hate crime reporting centres. The report was made through a protracted route 
delaying a police response. 

33.1 On attendance the local police neighbourhood team were able to secure CCTV 
evidence and recorded an offence of racially aggravated criminal damage. Due to the time 
frame between toilet cleans police were unable to identify a clear suspect. Advice was 
offered to the library to ensure reports were expeditious, toilets were cleaned and this was 
documented at regular intervals.

34.1 A further offence was committed within days, this time the correct reporting route 
was followed and the interval between cleans was narrowed significantly. This time a 
possible suspect was identified from CCTV and was arrested. The suspect was able to 
offer an alibi for his whereabouts during the first offence meaning there was insufficient 
evidence to charge. No further suspects could be identified.

35.1 The local neighbourhood team were able to work with the library to put crime 
reduction equipment into the location, including clear signs inside and outside the toilets. 

36.1 There have been no further offences and the crime remains unsolved.

Page 17



Future Work streams

37.1 Sgt Tim Evans became hate crime lead for Solihull in January 2015, since this time 
a review of the service offered by police has been undertaken. A number of work streams 
have been created to ensure the core aims of the West Midlands control plan are being met 
they include:

38.1 All hate crime reporting centres to receive refresher training to ensure their staff are 
trained and have an up to date understanding of working practices.

39.1 New posters and leaflets to be produced to promote reporting both directly to the 
police and via the hate crime reporting centres, these are to be supported by a local social 
media campaign.

40.1 Greater networking and communication between hate crime reporting centres and 
between centres and the police. This will include adding them to police communication 
networks and quarterly networking meetings to share best practice and refresh 
understanding.

What young people tell us?

41.1 The partnership has listened to young people’s views and through the recently 
conducted UK parliament elections 4,000 young people aged 11 to 19 who attend our 
schools identified the things that matter most to them and the things that would want their 
appointed rep to the UK parliament to address. 

 1272 choose Mental health issues
 1122 choose Safety issues 
 675 choose community issues
 370 choose relationships

42.1 At a recent meeting with young people the issue of confidence in young males 
and the Police was also raised and the local youth workers are seeking to work with some 
young people and the Police to explore ways in which this can be addressed.

43.1 The existing youth council, another mechanism for the partnership to engage with 
young people, has been recognised as not being diverse and reflective of our diverse 
young people community. As such it has been disbanded. The new approach is to make 
better use of the young people who attend out 4 borough youth centres and our schools 
panels. Two meetings have been held so far and these will develop in the future. It is being 
seen as a more effective way for young people, who are often unfairly demonised or 
criminalised, to have a voice in how the Council and the wider partnership consider the 
views of young people when commissioning its services and addressing crime and 
community safety issues. 

Page 18



Force Contact Overview

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



Non Emergency Contact Centre established: 23rd November 2013 

Decision to restructure the then Non-Emergency Call handling into two sites (West 
Bromwich and Lloyd House) operating as one ‘Virtual’ hub.

One common approach to the publics’ requirements

This ensured that the service they received was not governed by the LPU that they resided 
on but was consistent wherever caller was.

ICT – Technical Architecture and resilience of systems, including the Capacity to design 
future Multi Channel Management.

Introduction of First Contact Resolution as the underlying principle behind all Call Taking.

Call Monitoring so that feedback and support can be offered to staff to ensure continual 
development of the forces working practices

P
age 20



0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Time of Day

Non Emergency Calls Per Hour
Mon-Fri

P
age 21



P
age 22



Force Contact Performance

2014/15 Demand Journey
Average per Month (YTD) 

Proportion of calls which result 
in resourcing by LPU 30%

In
te
rn
al
 D
em

an
d

On‐going work to reduce demand on 

LPU

• Scheduled Response Review

• Routine Demand Review

• Grading and Accuracy Review

P
age 23



Force Contact Performance

2014/15 Demand Journey
Average per Month (YTD) 

Proportion of calls which result 
in resourcing by LPU 30%

On‐going work to reduce demand on 

LPU

• Scheduled Response Review

• Routine Demand Review

• Grading and Accuracy Review

P
age 24



P
age 25



Response Times
Immediate and Early 
Incidents
Performance against Target 
for each LPU

• Co-location of Control 
Rooms – Brings 
consistency in Grading

• Development Plans & 
Profile Support to LPU / 
OSD 

• Influencing LPU Culture

• Emphasis on Dispatch 
Times

Average Time 
From Call ….. to Dispatch

P
age 26



Work Programme
October 2014 to March 2015

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel

Item Reason for Inclusion Result/Purpose

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel

8th October 2014 (Panel Session 1)

Briefing Paper - The 
Role of the Crime and 
Disorder Scrutiny Panel

Briefing Item To inform the Panel of the role and remit of the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel.

Briefing Paper - The 
Role of Community 
Safety Partnerships

Briefing Item To inform the Panel of the role and remit of Community Safety Partnerships.

Anti-social Behaviour 
(ASB), Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 

Briefing 
Item/Scrutiny

To provide an update on the impending changes around the implementation of the Anti-social Behaviour (ASB), Crime and Policing 
Act 2014. 
The Panel will be invited to consider the current position in respect of the plans to implement the Act.
To date, the individual partners (Safer Solihull) have reviewed the implications of the changes in legislation and are adjusting their 
processes accordingly. The Panel will be invited to make any additional observations that may need to be responded to/taken into 
account.

Safer Solihull 
Performance Scorecard 
2014/15 – Summary – Q1

Performance 
Monitoring

To consider the Safer Solihull Performance Scorecard 2014/15 – Summary for the period Quarter 1 – April 2014 to June 2014. 
The Community Safety Manager will also provide a verbal update to the report on the emerging position for Quarter 2 – July 2014 to 
September 2014.
The Panel will be invited to highlight any matters of concern for ongoing monitoring or further detailed scrutiny.

Work Planning 
2014/2015

Panel Management The Panel will be invited to identify and agree items of business for inclusion in its Work Plan for 2014/2015.

17th December 2014 (Panel Session 2) – Civic Suite 6pm

Briefing Item – Counter 
Terrorism (Local 

Briefing Item The Panel will receive an informal briefing to inform and test the local measures in place for counter terrorism resilience in relation 
to the Council’s People and Place agenda.

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8



Work Programme
October 2014 to March 2015

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel

Item Reason for Inclusion Result/Purpose
Resilience)

Safer Solihull 
Performance Scorecard 
2014/15 – Summary – Q2

Performance 
Monitoring

To consider the Safer Solihull Performance Scorecard 2014/15 – Summary for the period Quarter 2 – July 2014 to September 2014.

The Panel will be invited to highlight any matters of concern for ongoing monitoring or further detailed scrutiny.

10th February 2015 (Panel Session 3) - Civic Suite 6pm

Reducing the Fear and 
Perception of Crime

Scrutiny/Policy 
Review

The Panel will consider an overview of the partnerships initiatives in place which work towards reducing the fear and perception of 
crime within our Borough’s communities.
The Panel will consider examples where there has been Partnership activity in specific areas to tackle and target individual local 
issues. (i.e. to demonstrate that the Partnership are understanding and addressing local problems).

Early Crime 
Interventions and 
Reducing the Risk of 
Reoffending

Scrutiny/Policy 
Review

The Panel will review the role of the Partnership in the early intervention and prevention of crime and seek evidence of “problem 
solving” approaches from the Partnership. The Panel will also review the initiatives in place that seek to prevent vulnerable groups 
from going onto commit crime and ASB.
The Panel will review the Partnerships strategies to prevent reoffending, particularly with young offenders. The Panel will also 
evaluate what typical percentage and what crime types within Solihull are attributable to reoffending.

Safer Solihull 
Partnership Annual 
Strategic Assessment & 
Community Safety Plan

Scrutiny/Policy 
Review

Ahead of the Cabinet Member Decision Session (Community & Partnerships - March 2015), the Panel will consider the latest Safer 
Solihull Annual Strategic Assessment & Community Safety Plan.

Safer Solihull 
Performance Scorecard 
2014/15 – Summary – Q3

Performance 
Monitoring

To consider the Safer Solihull Performance Scorecard 2014/15 – Summary for the period Quarter 3 – October 2014 to December 
2014.

The Panel will be invited to highlight any matters of concern for ongoing monitoring or further detailed scrutiny.

24th March 2015 (Panel Session 4) - Civic Suite 6pm

Community Integration Scrutiny/Policy 
Review

The Panel will review the strategies that the Partnership has in place to tackle specific crime types that adversely affect community 
integration, such as the local challenges posed by hate crime and discrimination towards certain sectors of the community.

P
age 28



Work Programme
October 2014 to March 2015

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel

Item Reason for Inclusion Result/Purpose
– Dealing with Specific 
Crime Types – Hate 
Crimes

Police 101 Non-
Emergency Number 
and Review of Police 
Contact

Scrutiny/Performa
nce Monitoring

The Panel will review the local use and effectiveness of the Police 101 number that is used to report some crime types and other 
issues that do not require an immediate emergency 999 responses.

The Panel will review local performance and identify if any improvements should be considered to this aspect of Police customer 
service.

Safer Solihull 
Performance Scorecard 
2014/15 – Verbal 
Update towards Year 
End

Performance 
Monitoring

To consider the Safer Solihull Performance Scorecard 2014/15 – direction of travel towards “year end”.

Draft Solihull Local 
Police & Crime Plan 
2015/16

Scrutiny/Policy 
Review

Ahead of its publication, the Panel will consider and the draft Solihull Local Police & Crime Plan 2015/16.

Briefing Items – to be circulated as appropriate and when updates are available

Anti-social Behaviour 
(ASB), Crime and 
Policing Act 2014

Briefing 
Item/Scrutiny

Following the Panel’s October meeting, an update will be provided on the implementation of the Anti-social Behaviour (ASB), Crime 
and Policing Act 2014, with particular emphasis on the effects of the community trigger provisions.

Domestic Abuse
[Circulated - 13 February 2015]

Scrutiny/Policy 
Review

The Panel will review with the Partnership, the progress made towards the recommendations arising from the Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny Panel in March 2014, which are:
1. The Safer Solihull Partnership should ensure that mechanisms remain in place to enable efficient and effective information 

sharing on Domestic Abuse related matters between all partner agencies. The Partnership should also help to facilitate any 
new opportunities and initiatives for information sharing and publicity that may arise;

P
age 29



Work Programme
October 2014 to March 2015

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Panel

Item Reason for Inclusion Result/Purpose
2. The Panel acknowledges the effectiveness of the Domestic Abuse Hotline – 0808 800 0028. However, to ensure it remains 

effective, the Hotline should be regularly re-promoted (internally and externally) to maintain awareness;
3. Having regard to the new www.solihull.gov.uk web pages, testing should take place to ensure that information on Domestic 

Abuse (and Anti-Social Behaviour) is easily linked to the way in which people most access the common Council Services. In 
addition, the feasibility of a separate micro-site for Domestic Abuse should be considered which could provide a 
comprehensive and valuable resource to the public, practitioners and all partner agencies;

4. The Safer Solihull Partnership should maintain a positive working relationship with Birmingham & Solihull Women’s Aid 
Service. A mechanism should be established whereby BSWAS and the SSP can exchange information regularly on local 
priorities and to establish the level of support/interventions needed between all agencies involved in Domestic Abuse;

5. The Safer Solihull Partnership should continue to strengthen its multi-agency approach which recognises the cross-cutting 
agendas between domestic abuse and anti-social behaviour;

6. The Safer Solihull Partnership should develop a multi-agency approach to help identify potential domestic abuse risks by 
screening individuals where “individual point-of-contact” opportunities arose through contact with other services, whether 
they be local authority led or otherwise; and

7. That new opportunities should be explored which strengthen the measureable involvement of health agencies given the 
perceived negative impact that Domestic Abuse has on the health and wellbeing of victims.

In considering this topic, the Panel will seek evidence that the work being done and the strategies in place, support the delivery of 
the objectives and priorities detailed within Solihull’s Local Policing and Crime Plan 2014/15.

Item added following recommendations made by the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Board on 5th November 2014:
1. To consider further information towards the long-term sustainability of domestic violence funding and available resources for 

key domestic violence services.

Drugs, Alcohol and 
Crime

Scrutiny/Policy 
Review

The Panel will receive updates as to the Partnerships approach and performance in tackling the link between drugs & alcohol and 
crime. 

Ongoing Monitoring/Carry Forwards to 2015/16

Monitoring of Partner 
Agencies Attendance at 
Key Meetings

Performance 
Monitoring

Added to Work Plan January 2015 - scope and timescales to be discussed and agreed.

P
age 30



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Community Integration - Dealing with Specific Crime Types
	6 Presentation - Force Contact Overview
	8 Work Plan
	10 Draft Solihull Local Police & Crime Plan 2015/16

